Info-Tel, Inc.

.

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 1

### TITLE SHEET

#### KENTUCKY RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the furnishing of intrastate long distance and alternate operator services to and from all points within the boundries of the State of Kentucky by Info-Tel. Inc. This tariff is on file with the Public Service Commission of the State of Kentucky pursuant to KRS 278.160 (1) and copies may be inspected at the Company's principal place of business: 3900 S. Federal Blvd.. Sheridan. Colorado 80110. during normal business hours.

Keith'S. Smith President/CEO Info-Tel, Inc.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

SEP 2 8 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Janetan C. Mart</u> FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

EFFECTIVE:\_\_\_\_\_

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 2

#### CHECK SHEET

Sheets 1 through 29 in this Tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the respective sheet(s). Any revised sheets as listed below comprise all changes from the original Tariff and become effective as of the date on the bottom of this page.

SHEET		3	REVISION
Title : 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	Sheet/Page 1	PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE SEP 2 & 1996 PURSUANT TO 607 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY:	Original Original

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

EFFECTIVE:

# RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Title Pagel
Check Sheet
Table of Contents
Explanation of Symbols, Reference Marks, and Abbreviations of Technical Terms
Application of Tariff5
Section 1 - Explanation of Terms and Abbreviations6
Section 2 - Rules and Regulations9
Section 3 - Description of Services
Section 4 - Rates and Charges23
Appendix A- Billing Form and Contents

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO: OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

# SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO 607 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Canadiana C. Mada FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMENSION

**ISSUED:** 

ISSUED BY:

EFFECTIVE

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 4

· · ·

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS. REFERENCE MARKS, AND ABBREVIATIONS\_OF TECHNICAL TERMS

The following symbols shall be used in this tariff for the purposes indicated below:

(1) "AT" means addition to text
(2) "C" means correction
(3) "CP" means change in practice
(4) "CR" means change in rate
(5) "CT" means change in text
(6) "DR" means discontinued rate
(7) "MT" means moved text
(8) "NR" means new rate
(9) "RT" means removal of text

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO, OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Gosdon C. Hall FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMUNICATION

EFFECTIVE:\_\_\_\_\_

Keith S. Smith. President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan. Colorado 80110

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 5

# RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

# APPLICATION OF TARIFF

This tariff contains the regulations and rates applicable to the furnishing of intrastate long distance and alternate operator services by Info-Tel. Inc. within all counties in the State of Kentucky.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO, OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011. SECTION 8 (1) BY: <u>Gradue C. Mad</u> FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

٦

EFFECTIVE\_\_\_\_\_

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 6

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

SECTION 1 - EXPLANATION OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

#### A. Alternate Operator Services

Alternate operator services are those services provided by the Company in which the Customer and the End User are totally separate entities. The Company contracts with the Customer to provide the alternate operator services; however, the Company does not directly contract with the End User to provide the services even though it is the End User who actually pays for the processing of the operator assisted calls.

B. Calling Card

A billing arrangement by which the charge for a call may be billed to certain telephone company issued calling card numbers.

C. Carrier or Company

Whenever used in the tariff, Carrier or Company refers to Info-Tel, Inc. unless otherwise specified or clearly indicated by the context.

D. Collect Call

A billing arrangement by which the charge for a call may be charged to the called party, provided the called party accepts the charge.

E. Credit Card Call

was a construction of the second s

A billing arrangement by which a call may be charged to an authorized credit card number. such as Mastercard, VISA or American Express.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

SEP 2 6 1996

SECTION 9 (1)

FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

BY: Orden C. Med.

EFFECTIVE: PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011.

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 7

\_\_\_\_\_

#### RESELIER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 1 - EXPLANATION OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

#### F. Customer or End User

Any person, firm, partnership, corporation or other entity furnished telecommunications services under the provisions and regulations of the Company's tariff. A Subscriber may be considered a Customer once services are contracted for. For AOS service, the Customer or End User is typically a member of the transient public and as such, does not negotiate directly with the Company for the provision or termination of service.

а. з. **х**. т

G. Person to Person Call

A service whereby the person originating the call specifies to the Company operator a particular person, station, room number, department or office to be reached through a PBX attendant.

H. Rate Center

A deodraphic location from which the vertical and horizontal coordinates are used in calculation of airline mileade.

I. Subscriber

The person, firm, partnership, corporation, or other entity who owns, leases or manages the telephone, pay telephone, PBX, or other switch vehicle from which a Customer places a call utilizing the services of the Company.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

SEP 2 6 1996

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, Keith S. Smith. President/CEO SECTION 9(1) 3900 S. Federal Blvd. BY: Genden G. Mer Sheridan. Colorado 80110 FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

EFFECTIVE:

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 8

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

SECTION 1 - EXPLANATION OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

K. Third Party Billed Call

A billing arrangement by which the charges for a call may be billed to a number that is different from the calling number and the called number.

**.** .

L. Traditional Operator Services

Those services provided by the Company in which the End User has a customer relationship with the Company, the Company contracts with the Customer/End User to provide the services and the Customer/End User pays for the actual processing of the operator assisted calls. These services are fully detailed under "1+ Services" in the "Description of Services" section.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO. OF KENTUCKY EPFECTIVE

SEP 2 8 1996

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Keith S. Smith, President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan, Colorado 80110

EFFECT LYE: PURSUANT TO OUT KAR DOLL, SECTION 9(1) at/CEO POR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMOSTOR

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 9

# RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

A. General

Info-Tel, Inc. offers telephone services for the use of Customers or Subscribers in transmitting messages throughout the State of Kentucky.

and the second second second

B. Limitations

(I) Service is offered subject to the availability of the necessary facilities or equipment or both facilities and equipment and subject to the provisions of this tariff.

(II) The Company reserves the right to discontinue service when necessitated by condition beyond its control or when the Customer or Subscriber is using the service in violation of the provisions of this tariff or in violation of the law.

(III) The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its facilities when available and will not be liable for errors in transmission or for failure to establish connections.

C. Purpose

Services provided under this tariff may be used for any lawful purpose for which the service is technically suited.

D. Liabilitv

(I) The Commany shall not be hable for claim or loss. expense or damage (including indirect, special or consequential damage), for any interruption, delay, error, omission or defect in any service, facility or transmission provided under this tariff, if caused by any person or entity other than the Company, by any act of

	PUB	LIC SERVICE COMMISSIO,
	EFFECTIVE:	OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

ISSUED BY:

ISSUED:

Keith S. Smith. President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan, Colorado 80110

SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Constant Constants of FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMENTS OF

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 10

### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

#### D. Liability (Cont.)

God, fire, war, civil disturbance, or act of government, or by any other cause beyond the Company's direct control.

(II) The Company shall not be liable for, and shall be fully indemnified and held harmless by Customer and Subscriber against any claim or loss. expense, or damage (including indirect. special or consequential damage) for defamation. libel. slander. invasion. infringement of convright or patent, unauthorized use of any trademark. trade name, or service mark, unfair commetition. interference with or miserpropriation or violation of any contract, proprietary or creative right or any other injury to any person, property or entity arising out of the material. deta. information or other content revealed to, transmitted, or used by the Company under this tariff. or for any act or omission of the Customer or Subscriber. or for any personal injury or death of any person caused directly or indirectly by the installation, maintenance, location, condition, operation, failure, presence, use or removal of equipment or wiring provided by the Company, not directly caused by negligence of the Company.

(III) The Company shall not be liable for any defacement of or damages to the premises of a Subscriber resulting from the furnishing of service which is not the direct result of the Company's negligence.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

# SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Generation C. Mark</u> FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

FFFECTIVE:

ISSUED BY:

ISSUED:

INFO-TEL. JNC.

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 11

an and a second s

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

#### E. Installation and Termination

Service is installed upon contractual agreement between the Subscriber or Customer/End User and the Company. The contractual agreement specifies the terms and conditions of installation, termination of service, commission structure and commission schedule.

× 1

# F. Billing and Collection

a construction of the second sec

All charges due by the Customer are payable to any agency duly authorized to receive such payments. The billing agency may be a local exchange company or credit card company. Alternate operator services will be billed through and collected by the local exchange telephone company. Credit card calls will be collected by the credit card company. All other services Applicant will provide will be billed through and collected by the Company. Terms of payment shall be according to the rules and regulations of the billing agency. Fills due directly to the Company for telephone services are due when they are rendered. If payment is not made within 30 days of the date of the bill, a late payment charge of one and one-halt percent (1 1/2%) per monthly billing period may be applied only once on any bil! for rendered services. If payment for alternate operator services is not made within 60 days, the Company will deduct, in addition to any penalties imposed by the local exchange telephone company, any commissions for operator service usage owed, to cover the outstanding charges.

# G. Billing Disputes and Complaints

Any objection to billed charges should be reported to the billing agent of the Company within thirty (30) days of the billing. The Company shall investigate the particular case and report the results thereof to the customer.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Eaith S. Smith. President/CFO 3900 S. Federal Blud. Sheridan. Colorado 80110

-----

SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO SOZ KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Condense (1) FOR THE PUBLIC SECTION COMMISSION

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 12

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 2 - BULES AND REGULATIONS

G. Billing Disputes and Complaints (Cont.)

During the period that the disputed amount is under investigation, the Company shall not pursue any collection procedures or assess late fees with regard to the disputed amount. If it is found that circumstances reasonably exist which indicate that adjustments to Customer bills are required, the hill shall be adjusted to correct the problem, including customer refunds or billing credits. In addition. the Customer shall be required to pay the undisputed part of the bill, and if not paid. the Company may discontinue service. In the event the dispute is not resolved, the Company shall inform the customer that the customer may utilize the complaint procedures of the Kentucky Public Service Commission. For any service, billing or technical problems/complaints, the Customer may contact the Company directly via its address or 1-800 customer service number listed on each bill.

#### H. Returned Checks

(I) If Carrier receives a check from a Customer in payment for service rendered or for any other reason of indebtedness and which is returned from the bank due to insufficient or uncollected funds or for any other reason. Carrier shall exply a service charge as shown in the Rates and Charges section.

(II) The charge shall be applied to Customer's monthly billing, in addition to any other charges which may apply under this tariff.

(III) Pavment rendered by check. which is subsequently dishonored, shall not constitute pavment until such time as repayment is made by valid means.

			PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIV	OF KENTUCKY E:EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY.	Keith S. Smit	h President/CEO	

Keith S. Smith, President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan, Colorado 80110

SEP 2 8 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 8 (1) BY: <u>Gradience</u> <u>C. March</u> FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMUNICATION

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 13

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

I. Credit Requirements and Deposits

(I) The Carrier reserves the right to examine the credit record and check the references of all applicants and customers. The Carrier may examine the credit profile/record of any applicant prior to accepting the service order or Customer's deposit. These shall not in themselves obligate the Carrier to provide service. if a later check of applicant's credit record is. in the opinion of the Carrier, contrary to the best interest of the Carrier.

(II) The Carrier does not require a deposit to secure telephone services, however, the carrier does reserve the right to require a deposit or usage prepayment equal to one month's estimated usage if the Carrier reasonably believes a Customer is a credit or usage risk.

J. Termination of Service

The Company may refuse service or terminate existing service to a Customer for any of the following reasons:

(1) Failure to make a security deposit if the Carrier reasonably believes the Customer is a credit or usage risk.

(2) Nonpayment of an undisputed bill within the period prescribed below.

(3) Evensive or improper use of telecommunications services which adversely affects the Company's equipment. or use in such a parner as to intertere with reasonable service to other customers.

			UBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO,
	an disandapan ( ) ini an ana ang kanang kang darang darang dara sa ang ganda sa ang di dalam dari ( ) dala san		OF KENTUCKY
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:	EFFECTIVE
TCCHEN DV.	Kaith a smit	h President/CFO	

ISSUED BY:

Keith S. Smith, President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan, Colorado 80110

SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>General C. Meel</u> FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION BY:

KENTUCKY TARIFF OBIGINAL PAGE NO. 14

# RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

#### J. Termination of Service (Cont.)

(4) For failure of and/or non-compliance with the Company's tariff on file with with and approved by the Commission or in the event of unauthorized use. tampering, hazardous conditions on the Customer's premises, not allowing reasonable access to Company equipment or not complying with contractual obligations for service subject to regulations by the Commission.

Fills due directly to the Company are due when rendered. If navment is not made within 30 days of the date of the ball in addition to the late ranness charge a letter requesting that the oblingment hill no paid shall be sent to the dustomer. If after 40 days payment has still not heen made telephone service with the exception of Emergency 911 access, may be interrupted. A warning letter explaining the impending disconnection shall then be sent to the Customer five (5) days before actual disconnection at the Customer's address.

Notice of disconnection shall not be given to Customers who have been documented as having fraudulently or illegally used Carrier's services thereby creating a high risk of financial loss to the Carrier.

#### K. Answer Supervision and Wrong Numbers

The Company shall not bill for unanswered calls in areas where answer supervision is available, and shall not knowingly bill for such calls where answer supervision is not available. Intrastate, Customer dialed wrong numbers shall be credited to the Customer's account if the Customer promotly notifies the Company of the error via its 1-800 customer service purper.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE : EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Keith S. Smith. President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan. Colorado 80110

SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Condense C. Mad FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMIN. STOM INFO-TFL. INC.

KENTUCKY TARIFE OPICINAL PAGE NO. 15

Emapitro cosures mostro

SECTION 2 - BULES AND FECULATIONS

L. Call Branding

The beginning of each AOS call will be branded by the operator, identifying Info-Tel, Inc. At this time, the End User or billed party has the opportunity to use the service or reject it at no charge. The end of each call will also be branded.

#### M. Rate Information to End User

Upon request of the End User or billed party, and at no additional charge, actual intrastate price lists for all components of the call will be guoted. These specific components include:

(1) A quote of tates and charges for the call

(2) The methode to which the rites and charges will be pollected

/s: The toll-time Customer Service number available for complaints or problems

 $N_{\rm o} = 0 - 0 = 1$ 

All intrastate calls will be connected instantaneouly to the LEC to be terminated over Info-Tel's underlying network.

O. Answer Time

All calls will be answered within ten (10) rings.

P. Equal Access

The Company will not knowingly engage in any action that would deny another OSP from being offered to and chosen by an End User when the End User has no OSP preference.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTICKY EFFECTIVE : EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSNED PY:

Poith S. Smith, Provident/(E) Read & Rodoral Blud Sheridan De orado 90110

SEP 2 8 1996

PURSUANT TO 867 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Gandon C. Mall</u> FOR THE POSED DENVICE COMMUNICATION

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 16

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

#### Q. IXC/LEC Access

All End Users will be furnished access to the LEC and all other IXC's which provide operator services by an access code (1-800, 950-XXXX. 10XXX, 0+, 0-), handing off the call to the LEC that services the phone being utilized by the End User for processing by the OSP of choice. Calls that show no origination point will not be billed. Any Subscriber found to be blocking access to intrastate common carriers by means of 1-800. 950-XXXX or 10XXX access codes shall have any commissions withheld until such blockage is removed.

R. Subscriber Surcharges

The Carrier will not add a property or Subscriber surcharge to Subcriber's telephones.

S. <u>Subscriber Responsibilities</u>

(1) All Subscribers within the State of Kentucky will be in compliance with the "Subscriber Responsibilities" and "IXC/LEC Access" sections of this tariff.

(2) All Subscribers to Carrier's services will post sineage near all presubscribed telephones stating:

(A) The name. address and toll-free telephone number of the Carrier.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

SEP 2 6 1996

# ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

EFFECT **FVIS**WANT TO 807 KAN 5011. SECTION 9 (1) Keith S. Smith, President/CEO BY: <u>Geoder</u> <u>C. Mach</u> 3900 S. Federal Blvd. FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION Sheridan, Colorado 80110

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

### S. Subscriber Responsibilities (Cont.)

(2) (cont.)

(B) A written disclosure stating: "You have the right to reach other long distance carriers from this telephone. You can do so by dialing the access code provided by that carrier. Rates for Info-Tel operator-assisted calls are available on request."

(3) All Subscribers will provide access to "800", "950" and "10XXX" access code numbers to Customers utilizing Carrier's services.

(4) Subscribers will not charge more for Customers using an access code number than they would for calls placed using the Carriers services.

(5) Subscribers will not add a property imposed fee or surcharge to calls if the Public Utility Authority in the Subscriber's state forbids it by rule or regulation.

(6) Subscribers not in compliance with the "IXC/LEC Access" and "Subscriber Responsibilities" sections in this tariff, will be subject to termination of service after 20 days' written or oral notice.

T. Emergency Calls

The Carrier will immediately connect any direct or operator assisted emergency calls to the LEC to be processed at no charge.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO: OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

SEP 2 8 1996

PURSUANT TO SUR KAR SONT EFFECTIVE: SECTION SET

BY: Quild and C. Marl FOR THE PUBLIC SEN HOL COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 18

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

#### A. General

Services will be provided through a capacity obtained from other carriers and Subscriber switching vehicles. The Applicant's carriers endeavor to provide high guality service. All network access is monitored and engineered to provide a P.Ol grade of service (99% call completion ratio). Service, including operator assistance is available 24 hours per day. 7 days per week, subject to routine maintenance and outages beyond the control of the Carrier. Carrier's switching equipment is designed and engineered to provide high guality transmission of voice and data with a minimum level of impairment such as noise and echo. However, overall quality may vary somewhat due to the variability in quality of the connections provided by the local telephone companies and other interexchange carriers which are beyond the Company's control. Services provided by Info-Tel, Inc. include specific services offered to Residential, Commercial and Hospitality Customers. Rates for services will depend on how each Customer is classified. A Residential Customer is classified as a single family household or apartment complex. A Commercial Customer is classified as a legal. established business that sells goods or services to government. the public or other businesses. A Hospitality Customer or Subscriber is classified as a Hotel, Motel, Hospital or University.

#### B. Timing of Calls

(I) The minimum length of a call for billing purposes is sixty (60) seconds. unless otherwise specified under the individual description of the service contained in the tariff.

(JI) Chargeable time for Customer dialed credit card calls will begin when the local exchange company signals that the called party has answered.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Keith S. Smith. President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan. Colorado 80110

SEP 2 8 1996

PURSUANT TO SOZ KAR 5:011, SEO FICH 9 (1) BY: Condense C., Medel FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 19

RESELLER SERVICES TARIEF

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

B. Timing of Calls (Cont.)

(II) (cont.) For operator station and person to person calls, chargeable time will begin when a connection is established between the calling party and the called party. No charge will apply to person to person calls for which the designated party or agreed alternate is unavailable. In all cases, chargeable time ends when either party disconnects.

(III) No charge for calls not completed.

C. Determination of Mileage

(I) Calls are measured from the rate cepter of the Subscriber's terminal or switch location to the rate center of the destination of the call.

(II) The distance between the rate centers of the Subscriber's switch and destination point is calculated by using the vertical ("V") and horizontal ("H") coordinates found in AT&T Tarift FCC No. 10. in the following manner:

Step 1 - Obtain the "V" and "H" coordinates for the Subscriber's switch and destination point.

Step 2 - Obtain the difference between the "V" coordinates of each of the rate centers. Obtain the difference between the "H" coordinates.

Step 3 - Square the difference obtained in Step 2.

<u>Step 4</u> - Add the squares on the "V" difference and "H" difference obtained in Step 3.

Step 5 - Divide the sum of the squares obtained in Step 4 by ten (10). Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction results from the division.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO: OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Feith S. Smith. President/CFO 3900 S. Federal Blud. Sheridan. Colorado 80110

SEP 2 6 1996

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 20

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

C. Determination of Mileage (Cont.)

Step 6 - Obtain the square root of the whole number obtained in Step 5. Pound to the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the distance between the rate centers.

D. Alternative Operator Services

(I) Alternative operator services anticipates the provision of billing options or operator assistance, or both billing options and operator assistance. End Users are members of the transient public, and therefore considered casual users of the network.

(II) Alternative operator service is offered via Subscriber's pay telephones, PBX or similar switch vehicle to Customers for direct transmission of voice telecommunications to locations throughout all counties in the State of Kentucky. Service is provided through the terminal equipment of Subscribers serving the transient public.

(III) Service is evaliable 24 mours per day. 7 days per week from subscriptor location.

(IV) No deposits are required for alternative operator services.

(V) Minimum call duration is one (1) minute. Minimum charges include the usage charge for the initial minute, time of day and holiday discounts, and applicable service charges.

(VI) There will be two (2) charge elements for each operator assisted call: a fixed operator service charge that is dependent on the type of billing selected (i.e. calling card, charging a third party, etc.)

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Keith S. Smith, President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan, Colorado 80110

SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Geodese & Zase</u> FOR THE RESERVED

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 21

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

# D. Alternative Operator Services (Cont.)

(VI) (cont.) and/or the selected completion restriction (i.e. station-to-station or person-to-person); and a measured charge reliant on the distance. duration and the time of day when the call is made. The measured charge element is specified as a rate per minute, applying to each minute of call duration. with a minimum charge for each call in one minute increments, and with fractional minutes of use counted as a whole minute.

(VII) All Customers shall have access to a live operator

(VIII) Alternative operator services rates and charges are specified in Section 4 following.

#### E. 1+ Services

(I) The Carrier provides hospitality Customers with l+ services day, evening and night to terminate interlata and interstate. Rates for hospitality Customers are flat rates and will vary depending on the type of hospitality service, the size of the service and the projected l+ monthly net revenue.

(II) The Carrier also provides commercial and residential Customers with flat rate 1+ services day, evening and night to terminate interlata and interstate.

(III) 1+ service rates and charges are specified in Section 4 following.

#### F. Residential 800# Service

Residential 800# service will offered as a contracted service with no activation fee or monthly charge. Residential 800# service will be billed at a flat rate specified in Section 4 following.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE: \_\_\_\_\_EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED:

Keith S. Smith, President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan, Colorado 80110

# SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO 607 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>(Jan America</u>, 27, 28-4) FOR THE MEDIC SERVICE COMMISSION

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 22

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

#### G. Commercial 800# Service

Commercial 800# service will be offered as a contracted service with no activation fee or monthly charge. Commercial 800# service will be billed at a flat rate specified in Section 4 following.

#### H. Hospitality 800# Service

Hospitality 800# service will be offered as a contracted service with no activation fee or monthly charge. Hospitality 800# service will be billed at a flat rate specified in Section 4 following.

I. 900# Service

900# service will be offered as a contracted service to provide pre-recorded information for callers. The Company will provide all 900# Customers the option to either record their information for them or access to a service bureau. All pre-recorded information will include a preamble explaining the cost of each call as per FTC regulations. 900# service will be marketed to the general public and state and local government, but not to prison facilities.

J. Directory Assistance

Directory assistance service shall be provided to all calls placed to the directory assistance operator for the purpose of obtaining the telephone numbers of Customers located within the same local service area and outside the local service area but within the same numbering plan area. A limit of two (2) telephone numbers may be furnished on each such call. Since directory assistance calls are handled on an individual. per call basis, they will be billed as outlined in Section 4 following.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION and an end of the second se OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Keith S. Smith. President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan, Colorado 80110

SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO SOF KAR SOLL, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Quedane C. March FOR THE PUELIC SERVICE COMMENSION

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 23

A second s

RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

#### SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES

A. General

and a second and a second s

For intrastate calls, each Customer is charged individually for each call placed through the Carrier. Charges are computed on the mileage basis as described in Section 3 (C) of this tariff.

(I) The Customer will not be charged for uncompleted calls.

(II) The billed party will not be charged more than the LEC rates for a local operator assisted call in the same exchange. This includes both the rates for MTS and operator surcharges.

B. Surcharges

Find Users will not be charged surcharges. or any other charges, in addition to the listed rates for MTS and operator surcharges set forth in this tariff and on file with the Commission.

C. Backhauling

End Users will not be assessed charges for backhauling.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO: OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

# SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Good sec. C. March FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMENSION

EFFECTIVE:

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

# RESELLER SERVICES TARIFE

#### SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES

D. Intrastate Alternative Operator Service Rates

			1			
MILEAGE	DAY TNIT'L	DAY ADD'L	EVE JNJT'L	EVE ADD'L	NIGHT INIT'L	NIGHT ADD'L
1 - 10	\$.22	\$.18	S.1694	S.1284	S.1342	S.1050
11 - 16	. 22	.18	.1694	.1284	.1342	.1050
17 - 22	.22	.19	.1694	.1463	.1342	.1159
23 - 30	.22	.19	.1694	.1463	.1342	.1159
31 - 55	.25	.25	.1925	.1925	.1525	.1525
56 - 85	.29	.29	.2233	.2233	.1768	.1768
86 - 124	.29	.29	.2233	.2233	.1768	.1768
125- 196	.29	.29	.2233	.2233	.1768	.1768
197- 292	.34	.34	.2618	.2618	.2000	.2000
293- 430	.34	.34	.2618	.2618	.2000	.2000

ADDITIONAL CHARGES:

The following per-call charges apply in addition to the per minute usage rates when the following types of calls are made. These charges apply in all rate periods.

Customer Dialed Destination:

comer Dialed Destination:		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO
Bill to Telephone Celling Card		OF KENTUCKY
Bill to Major Credit Card	S0.80	

Operator Dialed:

Bill to Telephone Calling Card Bill to Major Credit Card Station to Station Person to Person	S2.15 S2.15 S2.15 S4.50	PURSUANT TO S67 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Quadrate (7, 2004) FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

TIME PERIODS:

DAY	2	MON-FRI
EVE	ENINC	SUN-FRI
NIC	HT	SUN-FRI
ALL	DAY	SATURDAY/SUNDAY

# EFFECTIVE:\_\_\_\_\_

8:00 A.M. to 4:59 P.M. 5:00 P.M. to 11:59 P.M. 12:00 A.M. to 7:59 A.M. 8:00 A.M. to 4:59 P.M.

SEP 2 8 1996

Keith S. Smith, President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan. Colorado 80110

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 25

#### RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

### SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES

# F. 1+ Services

(I) 1+ Hospitality Services

Carrier rates for hospitality Customers will be dependent on several factors: the type of hospitality service provided, the size of the service, and monthly 1+ total net revenue. All factors are considered individually but weighed together when setting rates. Pates for type, size and monthly 1+ total net revenue are as follows:

TYPE OF SERVICE	SIZE	RATE
Single Hotel or Motel	N/A	S.08
Multiple Hotels or Motels or Hotel/Motel Chain	N/A	\$.065
**	0 - 400 Rooms	\$.08
Hospitals	401 Rooms or more	\$.065
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0 - 1000 Students	\$.08
Universities	1001 Students or more	\$.065

If monthly 1+ total net revenue is \$0.00 - \$750.00 then rate is: \$.08

If monthly 1+ total net revenue is \$751.00+, then rate is: \$.065

Pates are for all time periods and mileages. All billing increments will be 1 minute. PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

			A APARACE COMMISSIC
 	•	 entre e de antiere a	OFKENTOCKY
		FFFFCTIVE.	EFFECTIVE
		EFFECTIVE:	

ISSUED BY:

ISSUED:

Keith S. Smith, President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan, Colorado 80110

SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO SC7 KAR 5011, SEC TION 9 (1) BY: Constant C. Master FOR THE PUBLIC SETTICE COMMENSION

÷ .

-----

RESELLER SERVICES TARIER

SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES

F. 1+ Services (Cont.)

(II) 1+ Commercial Services

All billing increments will be 1 minute

Rate per minute: \$0.14 for all time periods and mileages

· · · ·

If call volume exceeds \$1000.00 per month in billing, account will receive a retroactive discount of 8% off for that month.

(III) 1+ Residential Services

All billing increments will be 1 minute

Rate per minute:

 \$0.18 deviate rate
 \$:00 e.m. - 4:59 p.m.

 \$0.14 evening rate
 \$:00 p.m. - 11:59 p.m.

 \$0.30 twillight rate
 \$2:00 c.m. - 7:59 a.m.

Rates are for all mileages. No installation fee. S2.00 per month service charge.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO, OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

# SEP 2 8 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Condian C. Mark FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

EFFECTIVE:

Keith S. Smith President/CEO 3400 S. Pederal Rind. Sheridan Colorado 80110

ISSUED BY:

# KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 27

RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES

G. Residential 800# Service

All billing increments will be 1 minute

Rate per minute: 50.18 for all time periods and mileages

H. Commercial 800# Service

All billing increments will be 1 minute

Rate per minute: S0.16 for all time periods and mileages

I. Hospitality 800# Service

All billing increments will be 1 minute

Rate per minute: \$0.14 for all time periods and mileages

If call volume exceeds \$1000.00 per month in billing. hospitality account will receive a retroactive usage rate of 0.128 cents per minute for that month.

J. POCE Service

All billing increments will be I minute

Rate per minute: SO 35 for all time periods and mileages

If call volume exceeds \$1000.00 per month in billing, usage is a retroactive rate of 0.28 cents per minute for that month.

к. Directory Assistance

> The Carrier shall assess a one time charge of \$0.75 per directory assistance request.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIC, OF KENTUCKY
ISSUED:	EFFECTIVE:	EFFECTIVE

SEP 2 8 1996

PURSUANT TO SUF KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Gardine C. Head FOR THE FUBLIC SERVICE CONTINENDI

ISSUED BY:

KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 28

RESELLER SERVICES TARIFF

SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES

L. Returned Check Charges

The Company shall assess a service charge of \$20.00 for each returned check.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIC OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

SEP 2 6 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Conden C. Herl</u> FOR THE PUBLIC BEAVICE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Keith S. Smith, President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan. Colorado 80110

EFFECTIVE:

# KENTUCKY TARIFF ORIGINAL PAGE NO. 29

.

\_\_\_\_\_

APPENDIX A



.....

5 S S

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO, OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

SEP 2 & 1996

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Condam C. Had. FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

EFFECTIVE:

Keith S. Smith. President/CEO 3900 S. Federal Blvd. Sheridan. Colorado 80110

a service and the service and the service of the se



REF #

÷. -

1

در و میتفیرد. اهمیا از چنواند میراند

36.05.7

- --- -



:

· · · · ·

1 <u>1</u>.

• ---Ξ. -----PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

SEP 2 8 1996

EFFECTIVE

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTIONS BY: Set States Land Ball FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE OCHMIDSION





PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO: OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

SEP 2 8 1996

r5.

PURSUANT TO 867 KAR 5011. \$50TR0:19(1) Please send payment with remittance copy to: and an C. Mart RY. G.L. Bryan Investments: Inc. FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMENTS P.D. Box 953 Denver, CU 80201 a catalog a second a sec Second a sec THANK YOU FOR USING INFO-TEL, INC. 1.5% per month interest on all invoices past 30 days Total prior to tax # Total Federal tax 🗉 Total State tax # Total payable upon receipt of invoice

Assigned to G.L. Bryan Investments, Inc.

